# United States Attorneys Bulletin



Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.

Volume 20

November 24, 1972

No. 24

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Vol. 20	November 24, 19	72	No. 24
	TABLE OF CONTE	NTS	
			Page
COMMENDATIONS			911
EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR I	UNITED		912
POINTS TO REMEMBER Postal Money Orders P.L. 92-430, 18 U.S.C	. 500, Amended		913
Early Trial Urged in Tax Preparer Cases	r Return		914
ANTITRUST DIVISION SHERMAN ACT Settlement Reached in Resulting From Viola Sections 1 and 2 She	tion of Decree in	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Grinnell</u> <u>Corp., et al.</u>	915
CIVIL DIVISION  FEDERAL LIEN PRIORITII  Tenth Circuit Holds th  Lien Act of 1966 Doe  Federal Law Governit  Non-Tax Federal Lien	at Federal Tax s Not Change ng Priority of	T. H. Rogers Lumber Co. v. Apel, et al (C.A. 10)	_
FEDERAL MEAT INSPECT Ninth Circuit Holds Deculture Has Independent to Enforce Federal Meat Notwithstanding Action of Food and Decurrence Concurrence der Federal Food, Dr.	epartment of Agri- dent Jurisdiction leat Inspection Less Restrictive drug Administration	Chip Steak Co., Inc	<u>•</u>
·		v. <u>Butz</u> (C.A. 9)	918

the state of the s

		Page
CRIMINAL DIVISION SALE OF NARCOTICS - SENTENCING UNDER STATUTES IN EFFECT PRIOR TO CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE LEGISLATION	U. S. v. Joseph R. Fiore (C.A. 2)	919
LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION CONDEMNATION Judicial Notice of Noncomparability of Sales; Jury Instructions; Closing Argument	U.S. v. Certain Lan	<u>d</u>
FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE  RULE 6(b)(2): The Grand Jury; Objections	570, etc.	920
to Grand Jury and to Grand Jurors; Motion to Dismiss	U.S. v. Bally Manufacturing Corp.	<u>-</u> 921
RULE 6(c): The Grand Jury; Foreman and Deputy Foreman	U. S. v. Bally Manufacturing Corp.	- 923
RULE 6(f): The Grand Jury; Finding and Return of Indictment	U. S. v. Bally Manufacturing Corp.	- 925
RULE 7(c): The Indictment and the Information; Nature and Contents	U.S. v. Wayne B. Clizer (C.A. 9)	927
RULE 8: Joinder of Offenses and of Defendants	U. S. v. Benton and Company, Inc.	9 <b>2</b> 9
RULE 11: Pleas	v. U. S. (C.A. 5)	931
RULE 11: Pleas	James Raymond Alawa v. <u>U. S.</u>	933
RULE 12(b): Pleadings and Motions Before Trial; Defenses and Objections; The Motion Raising Defenses and Objections	U.S. v. Stephen J. Dinneen (C.A. 10)	935

		<u>Page</u>
RULE 13: Trial Together of Indictments		
or Informations	<u>U.S.v.Alan</u> Weinberg, et al.	937
RULE 14: Relief from Prejudicial Joinder	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Alan</u> <u>Weinberg, et al.</u>	939
RULE 16(b): Discovery and Inspection; Other Books, Papers, Documents, Tangible Objects or Places	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Bally M</u> anı	1 <b>-</b> _
	facturing Corp.	941
RULE 24(c): Trial Jurrors; Alternate		
Jurors	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Robert</u> <u>Warren Cameron</u> (C.A. 3)	943
RULE 32(a)(1): Sentence and Judgment;		
Sentence; Imposition of Sentence	<u>U. S. v. Donald J. Picard</u> (C.A. 1)	945
RULE 32(b): Sentence and Judgment;		
Judgment	<u>U. S. v. William</u> <u>Ernest Ross</u> (C.A.	2) 947
RULE 32(c)(2): Sentence and Judgment;		
Presentence Investigation; Report	U. S. v. Donald J. Picard (C.A. 1)	949
RULE 41(b): Search and Seizure; Grounds		
for Issuance [of Warrant]	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Frederick</u> <u>Voegele</u>	951
RULE 41(e): Search and Seizure; Motion for Return of Property and to Suppress.		
Evidence	U. S. v. Anthony Nicholas Carrion and Michael Anthon	
:# •	Carrion (C.A. 9)	953
RULE 43: Presence of the Defendant	U. S. v. William H. Miller; U. S. v. Maurice Gregory	
	(C.A.1)	055

The second of the second secon

		Page
RULE 43: Presence of the Defendant	U.S. v. John Theodore Glick (C.A. 2)	957
RULE 44: Right to and Assignment of Counsel	U. S. v. Stephen J. Dinneen (C.A. 10)	959
RULE 48(b): Dismissal; By Court	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Edgardo</u> <u>Alverio Diaz</u>	961
RULE 52(a): Harmless Error and Plain Error; Harmless Error	U. S. v. Wayne B. Clizer (C.A. 9)	963

## COMMENDATIONS

Assistant U. S. Attorney Harvey E. Schlesinger, Middle Dist. of Florida, was recently commended by L. Patrick Gray, III, Acting Director, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for the astuteness and ingenuity which Mr. Schlesinger exhibited in the preparation and trial of 38 individuals involved in gambling activities.

United States Attorney Brian P. Gettings and his Assistant G. Rodney Sager, Eastern Dist. of Virginia, were commended by William J. Cotter, Assistant Postmaster General, Inspection Service for their excellent case preparation and command of case law in  $\underline{U.S.}$  v.  $\underline{Max\ Gitman,\ et\ al.}$ 

# EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS Philip H. Modlin, Director

The Executive Office for U. S. Attorneys would like to take this opportunity to thank Miss Violet Sada, Eastern District of New York, for assisting in the training of MTST operators in several other United States Attorneys offices.

## POINTS TO REMEMBER

Postal Money Orders
P.L. 92-430, 18 U.S.C. 500, Amended

18 - Marin Krabelle ing seritari beritari serina di Marinia Disputatione de la refere de la

On September 23, 1972, H. R. 9222, a bill to correct deficiencies in the law relating to the crimes of forgery and counterfeiting, was enacted into law as Public Law 92-430. The new law amends section 500 of Title 18, United States Code, dealing with postal money orders by expanding the scope of section 500 coverage to include within its proscriptions the theft, embezzlement, or wrongful possession and use of blank postal money orders as well as those machines, tools or instruments used for filling in such money orders. The enactment of this bill represents a significant improvement in the law as relates to postal offenses and should greatly enhance the ability of the Government to successfully prosecute offenses involving the theft of money orders.

In the past, existing Federal criminal statutes, principally section 641 of Title 18, United States Code, had been used to prosecute acts now specifically covered by section 500 as amended. Under 18 U.S.C. 641 prosecutions, the Government often had been hindered in bringing felony prosecutions because of the difficulty of proving, to a court's satisfaction, the value of the blank money orders. Section 500, as amended, requires no showing of value, either on the "thieves market" or by any other standard, and makes the mere theft, embezzlement, guilty possession or conversion of such instruments a violation punishable by up to a \$5,000 fine or imprisonment up to five years, or both.

As a corollary to the blank money order provisions, section 500 now specifically covers those machines and other instruments essential to the thief if he is to complete the blank money orders for subsequent negotiation. In addition to its provisions concerning the theft of such implements, section 500 covers those fact situations where a defendant claims his possession of such machines or instruments is innocent by requiring evidence only that his possession is without the authority of the Postal Service or the Post Office Department. As such, proof of possession so as to constitute a prima facie violation of this provision does not require proof of possession of these instruments with knowledge of their quality as stolen property.

All United States Attorneys should become familiar with the provisions of section 500, as amended. Questions concerning the new provisions of this section should be directed to the General Crimes Section. Attorneys familiar with this section and related statutes may be reached by calling (FTS) 202-739-2346.

# Early Trial Urged in Tax Return Preparer Cases

And the Copy of th

The Chief Counsel of the Internal Revenue Service has asked the Department to seek early trial dates in some 55 pending indictments charging commercial tax return assistance practitioners with preparing fraudulent returns. The need for potent deterrent examples is, of course, most urgent as the tax year ends and private tax preparing services emerge. Every possible step should be taken by the United States Attorneys to bring about the successful disposition of pending indictments against tax return preparers as early as possible in 1973, preferably in January. Maximum publicity should be given such convictions.

In addition, it is requested that United States Attorneys urge sentencing Courts to impose as a condition of probation in tax return preparer cases that the defendants shall not engage in the return preparation business for the duration of probation.

(Tax Division)

# ANTITRUST DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Thomas E. Kauper

## DISTRICT COURT

#### SHERMAN ACT

SETTLEMENT REACHED IN DAMAGE ACTION RESULTING FROM VIOLATION OF DECREE IN SECTIONS 1 AND 2 SHERMAN ACT CASE.

United States v. Grinnell Corporation, et al. (65 Civil 2486; October 31, 1972; DJ 60-339-1)

On October 31, 1972, the government entered into a settlement agreement with the ITT Grinnell Corporation, American District Telegraph Company, Holmes Electric Protective Company and the Automatic Fire Alarm Company to settle an antitrust damage action filed on June 7, 1965. The defendants paid the government \$225,000.

In this suit the government charged that in its capacity as a purchaser of central station protection service for use by federal governmental organizations to protect property against losses by fire, burglary and other hazards, the government was overcharged for the service as a result of antitrust violations.

This damage action arose out of a civil antitrust enforcement action filed on April 13, 1961 under Sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act charging that the defendants had engaged in an unreasonable restraint of trade, a combination and conspiracy to monopolize, an attempt to monopolize, and actual monopolization of interstate trade and commerce in the central station protection service industry. The enforcement action was tried before United States District Judge Charles E. Wyzanski, Jr. in Boston, Massachusetts during June 1964. On November 27, 1964, the court decreed that the defendants had violated Section 1 of the Sherman Act by restraining and continuing to restrain interstate commerce in central station protection service, and had violated Section 2 of the act by conspiring to monopolize and by monopolizing interstate trade and commerce in that market. (United States v. Grinnell Corp., et al., 236 F. Supp. 244 (D. Rhode Island 1964)) All parties to the action appealed the case to the Supreme Court of the United States in 1965. On June 13, 1966 the Supreme Court affirmed the decision of the District Court and remanded the case for further hearings on relief. Final Judgment in the enforcement action was entered by Judge Wyzanski on July 11, 1967.

In the complaint the government sought damages for overcharges on central station protection service purchased by the government from the defendants from April 13, 1957 to the date of the Final Judgment on the theory that the Statute of Limitations was suspended during the pendency of the government's antitrust enforcement action. Thereafter, defendants moved for a partial summary judgment seeking to bar any of the government's claims which accrued over four years before the filing of the damage action on June 7, 1965. On October 21, 1969 Judge Charles M. Metzner of the Southern District of New York ruled that the government was limited to causes of action accruing within four years of the filing of its damage suit and that the Statute of Limitations in an antitrust damage suit was not suspended during the pendency of the antitrust enforcement action.

Staff: Noel E. Story (Antitrust Division)

\* \* \*

# CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Harlington Wood, Jr.

# COURTS OF APPEAL

# FEDERAL LIEN PRIORITIES

TENTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT FEDERAL TAX LIEN ACT OF 1966 DOES NOT CHANGE FEDERAL LAW GOVERNING PRIORITY OF NON-TAX FEDERAL LIENS.

T. H. Rogers Lumber Co. v. Apel, et al. (C. A. 10, No. 72-1177, decided October 16, 1972, D. J. 101-59-129)

The Farmers Home Administration disbursed \$14,500 to James Apel and his wife on a home construction loan, and took a mortgage on the realty in question. The mortgage was recorded on September 19, 1969. Shortly prior thereto building suppliers T. H. Rogers Lumber Co. and Parrish Electric and Plumbing had commenced delivering building materials for the construction. Their materialmen's liens were filed the following April. In this action against the Apels for default in payment for the construction and material, Rogers and Parrish asserted that, even though their liens were filed many months after the government's lien, they were entitled to priority because, under Oklahoma law, once their liens were perfected, they related back to the date when the labor or material was first furnished. The government relied on the "first in time, first in right" rule. The district court agreed with the materialmen, granting their motions for summary judgment. Relying on Ault v. Harris, 317 F. Supp. 373 (D. Alas. 1968), affirmed per curiam, 432 F. 2d 441 (C. A. 9, 1970), the court held that since the "first in time, first in right" rule no longer prevails in the field of federal tax liens, by virtue of the Federal Tax Lien Act of 1966 (26 U.S.C. 6323), there was no good reason for maintaining that rule in other areas. See also Connecticut Mutual Life Ins. Co. v. Carter, 446 F. 2d 136 (C. A. 5), certiorari denied, 404 U.S. 857 (1971).

In our appeal the Tenth Circuit reversed. That court held that the case was one requiring a uniform federal rule (Clearfield Trust Co. v. United States, 318 U.S. 363, 367); that the enactment of the Federal Tax Lien Act of 1966 was no evidence that Congress intended to subordinate other federal liens to interests granted priority by State law; and that the "first in time, first in right" rule was the appropriate federal law dispositive of the case (the materialmen's liens not being "choate" prior to the filing of the government's lien).

This significant decision, which is in conflict with the Ault decision of the Ninth Circuit and the Connecticut Mutual decision of the Fifth, puts new

life back into the federal "first in time, first in right" rule, and should lead to substantial recoupment of defaulted federal mortgage money.

Staff: Ronald R. Glancz (Civil Division)

Construction of the second second

## FEDERAL MEAT INSPECTION ACT

NINTH CIRCUIT HOLDS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE HAS IN-DEPENDENT JURISDICTION TO ENFORCE FEDERAL MEAT INSPECTION ACT NOTWITHSTANDING LESS RESTRICTIVE ACTION OF FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION EXERCISING CONCURRENT JURISDICTION UN-DER FEDERAL FOOD, DRUG AND COSMETIC ACT.

Chip Steak Co., Inc. v. Butz (C. A. 9, No. 72-1212, decided October 31, 1972; D. J. 98-11-39)

Plaintiffs, meat packers and processors, sued the Secretary of Agriculture to invalidate his regulation which barred the use of chemicals known as sorbates in cooked sausage and other meat products. See 9 C. F. R. 318.7(d)(2). Plaintiffs contended that the regulation was contrary to the Federal Meat Inspection Act (as amended by the Wholesome Meat Act of 1967), 21 U.S.C. 601 et seq., in view of the fact that sorbates were permitted for use by the Food and Drug Administration exercising its concurrent jurisdiction under the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act; and that the Secretary of Agriculture had not followed rulemaking procedures which Section 409 of the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. 348, makes applicable to rulemaking undertaken by the Food and Drug Administration. The district court however held that the Secretary of Agriculture, acting under the Federal Meat Inspection Act, has independent authority to impose more stringent restrictions in regard to meat additives; and that no provision in that Act required the Secretary to follow the rulemaking procedures of the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.

On appeal, the Ninth Circuit affirmed on the authority of the district court's opinion (322 F. Supp. 1084). The district court, and the Court of Appeals in affirming, also rejected a number of procedural contentions of plaintiffs, including a claim of improper notice of the Secretary's proposed regulation, and that scientific memoranda were placed in the administrative record subsequent to the time for receipt of public comments.

Staff: Leonard Schaitman (Civil Division)

# Assistant Attorney General Henry E. Petersen

## COURT OF APPEALS

SALE OF NARCOTICS - SENTENCING UNDER STATUTES IN EFFECT PRIOR TO CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE LEGISLATION.

<u>United States v. Joseph R. Fiore</u> (C. A. 2, No. 906, September 27, 1972; D. J. 12-017-52)

Joseph R. Fiore was convicted of selling heroin in violation of 21 U.S.C. 174 and 26 U.S.C. 4704(a). The offenses occurred in 1969 and 1970. However, Fiore was not sentenced until January 21, 1972. At that time, he was given a 20 year sentence and declared ineligible for parole.

On appeal, Fiore contended that he should have been sentenced under the liberal provisions of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act and that the sentence imposed on him was, therefore, illegal. Fiore advanced three arguments in this respect. First, he contended that the sentencing statute in effect at the time of his offenses (i.e., 26 U.S.C. 7237) had been repealed by the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act (which took effect on May 1, 1971). Second, he claimed that his ineligibility for parole was a denial of equal protection of the laws since the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act grants parole eligibility to individuals who are convicted thereunder, The Second Circuit Court of Appeals refused to consider these contentions, citing earlier Second Circuit decisions rejecting the same contentions. (In passing, the Court noted that the Supreme Court has granted certiorari in United States v. Bradley, 455 F. 2d 1181 (1st Cir. 1972), cert. granted 40 U.S.L.W. 3581 (June 12, 1972). Bradley raises the same sentencing issues as those posed by Fiore.)

Fiore also insisted that a 20 year sentence without parole was cruel and unusual punishment within the meaning of the eighth amendment. The Court of Appeals, citing earlier Second Circuit decisions, summarily rejected this contention. In passing, the Court observed that the opinions in Furman v. Georgia, 40 U.S.L.W. 4923 (June 29, 1972) did not constitute support for Fiore's cruel and unusual punishment contention.

Staff: United States Attorney Robert A. Morse;
Assistant United States Attorney Ramond J. Dearie
(E.D. New York)

\*

# LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Kent Frizzell

## COURT OF APPEALS

## CONDEMNATION

JUDICIAL NOTICE OF NONCOMPARABILITY OF SALES; JURY INSTRUCTIONS; CLOSING ARGUMENT.

United States v. Certain Land in Squares 532 and 570, etc., Parcels 1 and 9 (C.A. D. C. No. 23, 573, Nov. 7, 1972; D. J. 33-9-722)

The United States brought condemnation proceedings to acquire certain parcels in the District of Columbia for construction of a new Federal Home Loan Bank. The landowners' appraiser testified to the value of the property based on comparable sales of similar property located nearby. When he sought to testify as to sales near DuPont Circle, the Government objected that they were in an entirely different neighborhood and that abundant sales data in the subject neighborhood existed. The court sustained the objection, taking judicial notice of the incomparability of such sales. Also, in summation, counsel for the Government asked the jurors, in determining fair market value, to place themselves in the position of a prospective purchaser.

On appeal, the Court of Appeals affirmed per curiam, holding that the trial judge could properly take judicial notice of the incomparability of certain land, and that he did not abuse his discretion in excluding the proferred evidence. The trial judge properly refused to instruct the jury that public funds were not involved in the project. Also, the propriety of the Government's closing argument was sustained. Finally, the court directed that all costs of this frivolous appeal be assessed against the landowner.

Staff: Stanley J. Fineman (Land and Natural Resources Division)

\* \*